
            
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

 

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

                               BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

JANUARY 16, 2025 
 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

   
OPEN SESSION: 
 

 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.  

 
CLOSED SESSION: 

 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Significant exposure 

to litigation pursuant to subdivision (b) of Gov. Code Section 54956.9 - One potential case. 
 
 
OPEN SESSION: 

 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion  

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for December 19, 2024 

B. Receive and Ratify the Check Warrant List 

C. Approve Clark attending CASA Winter Conference January 29-31 in Palm Springs 

D. Approve Yezman attending CASA Winter Conference January 29-31 in Palm Springs 

E. Approve Final Winter Newsletter 

F. Approve Resolution 2025-2325 Designating Bank Signers 

G. Approve December Board Compensation 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through E and G. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through G. 

4:20 PM 

Estimated 
Time 
 
 

4:00 PM 

4:05 PM 
 
 
 
 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


January 16, 2025 Page 2 of 3 
  

  

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

2. Annual Budget Development Timeline for FY 2025-2026 – written 

 

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

1. CLARK  
a. NBWA Board Committee, Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,  

Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,  FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, 
 Energy Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports  
 

2. LAVROV 
a. TBD 

 
 

3. MURRAY 
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,  

 Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,  
 Energy Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

 
4. ROBARDS 

a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE, 
McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
 FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

5. YEZMAN 
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE, 

                          Marin Special Districts,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  
              Other Reports 
 

6. BOARD REQUESTS: 
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal 

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal 

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

            FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: JANUARY 23 AND FEBRUARY 6, 2025 

 

 

5:05 PM 

 
 
 
 

4:30 PM 

 

5:10 PM 

 
 

5:20  PM 

 
 

4:45 PM 

 

2



January 16, 2025 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before January 13,  2025 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held on January 16,  2025 at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas 
Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: January 9, 2025 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, 
San Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), if you need special assistance 
to participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting. Notification prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable disability-
related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services, to help ensure accessibility to 
this meeting. 

AGENDA APPROVED: Crystal J. Yezman, Vice President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

3



 

 
 

 

1/16/2025 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



 

 
 

 

1/16/2025 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 2 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\01162025\Newsletter\ASR Approve Winter 2025 Newsletter.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report  

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
(415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org

Meeting Date: January 16, 2025 

Re: Approve Winter 2025 Heron Newsletter 

Item Type: Consent  X  Action  Information Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes   No (See attached) Not Applicable    X  . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the publication of the Winter 2025 Heron Newsletter. 

BACKGROUND 
The District produces a newsletter approximately every six (6) months to update customers 
regarding subjects of interest about the District. Each newsletter typically has one main topic and 
three to four smaller articles. A primary theme throughout the newsletter is the critical need to 
continue investing in capital improvements to maintain and protect the District’s infrastructure to 
meet the District’s goals of providing reliable service while protecting the environment. 

The Board reviewed the newsletter on December 5, 2024 and provided suggestions, which have 
been incorporated into the final version attached. The newsletter will be mailed in late January. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On October 17, 2024, the Board discussed potential newsletter topics and gave staff direction to 
develop the newsletter. The following topics were chosen: 

• Board of Directors Election Results

• Wastewater Surveillance for COVID-19 and Other Pathogens

• Engineering Department Spotlight

• Pollution Prevention FOG (Fats Oil and Grease), Flushable Wipes, No Drugs Down the Drain

• New Hires in 2024

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 
The newsletter is budgeted in the 2024-25 Budget as part of the District’s public outreach. 

Item Number______3E________ 

GM Review   _____CP_________ 

20

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


The Heron
L a s  G a l l i n a s  V a l l e y  S a n i t a r y  D i s t r i c t

Winter 2025

Continued on page 4...

Do You Know What Items Should NOT 
Go Down YOUR Drain?
NO fats, oil, grease, wipes, or prescription drugs!

Your help is needed to avoid 
creating a sewer overflow, and to 
protect our environment! Did you 
know that some typical household 
substances should not go down the 
drain, because they can cause a 
sewer overflow or other problems? 
Here’s an overview of how you can 
help with pollution prevention, and 
do your part to keep such materials 
from getting into the system in the 
first place.

Prevent FOG
Many of us may enjoy a nice, 
foggy Sunday morning — but 
there’s a different kind of FOG 
that is not so enjoyable for drains 
and sewers. FOG stands for “Fats, 
Oil, and Grease” and those are 
all things that should not be put 
down the drain. They can pollute 
our waterways and easily build 
up in drains and the sewer lines, 
causing restrictions and overflows 
in your home or further down the 
line. And, they cause problems at 
the treatment plant. FOG includes 
substances like cooking oil, lard, 

butter/margarine, shortening, 
bacon grease, some sauces and 
salad dressings, cheese, and meat 
fat trimmings.

Here are some tips for preventing 
FOG from entering the sewer 
system: 

•  Never pour fats, oil, or grease 
down the drain.

•  Use a paper towel to wipe 
cooled oil and grease from 
cooking pans before washing — 
put the paper towel in your green 
organics cart.

Continued on page 3...

Easy Sign-Up for District Information
Get the District information you want via email! Just 
click on the QR code at left to subscribe to timely 
emails including news and updates, links to our 
newsletters, and agendas for our Board of Directors’ 
meetings. And don’t worry — we’ll never sell or give 
your email to any third party.

The Las Gallinas 
Valley Sanitary 
District welcomes 
Nicholas Lavrov, who 
was elected to the 
Board of Directors 

in November and sworn in on 
December 19. As a Board member, 
Mr. Lavrov helps represent the 
District’s community and ratepayers 
in the critical areas of water 
management, environmental 
protection, and sustainable 
operations. He will serve the 
remaining two years of this seat’s 
four-year term (the partial term is 
due to the resignation of former 
Director Ronald Ford earlier this 
year). Incumbents Craig Murray 
and Gary Robards ran unopposed 
in this election and will continue to 
serve as directors for a new four-
year term.

Mr. Lavrov has worked for over 25 
years in the public sector. Among 
other roles, his experience includes 
seven years as senior park ranger 
involved in overseeing the permit 
management program for Golden 
Gate National Recreation Area 
lands in Marin, San Francisco, and 
San Mateo counties. He’s also 
worked with the San Francisco 
Water Department on water 
inspection and water conservation 
programs, and managed 270,000 
acres of U.S. parklands and 
resources for the Bureau of Land 

Nicholas 
Lavrov 
Elected to 
District Board 
of Directors

21



2

Continued on page 4...

Department Spotlight: Engineering
The District’s Engineering 
Department (Team) is pivotal 
in ensuring environmental 
compliance, upgrading critical 
infrastructure, and advancing 
sustainability initiatives. The Team 
is responsible for managing the 
Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP), overseeing essential projects 
that modernize facilities and 
enhance wastewater management, 
safeguarding the environment, and 
benefitting the community.

A recent highlight for the 
department was the completion 
of a ~$70 million upgrade to 
LGVSD’s wastewater treatment 
plant. This major improvement 
increases treatment efficiency and 
capacity and supports regulatory 
compliance, addressing the high 
standards required for safe and 
effective wastewater processing.  

The Team is also preparing for 
upgrades to the wastewater 
collection system, to rehabilitate 
sewer mains and modernize the 
largest pump station in the District 
— the Duckett Pump Station. 
Built in the 1960s, this station will 
soon undergo upgrades to its 
electrical systems and conveyance 
infrastructure, including critical 
pipelines that run under a freeway 
and a creek.

A unique aspect of LGVSD’s 
operation is its reclamation area, 
where treated water is stored during 
certain times of the year when 
discharge to the Bay is restricted by 
their regulatory permit.

The Team plays a vital role in 
developing projects for proper 
operation and maintenance of 
the infrastructure supporting these 
holding ponds, ensuring they 
function properly throughout the 
year.

The department includes the District 
Engineer, an Associate Engineer, 
and a Civil Engineering Technician. 

The Team manages an 
impressive workload of 47 CIP 
projects totaling ~$18 million 

for fiscal year 2024-2025. 

Of these, 44 are currently active, 
with a mix of large-scale upgrades 
and smaller initiatives. Additionally, 
the department is reviewing more 
than 40 private land development 
and building renovations, ensuring 
the projects integrate seamlessly 
into the LGVSD sewer system.

The department Team issues 
requests for proposals, manages 
consultant bids and work, and 
oversees project construction, 
ensuring each project meets 
LGVSD’s sustainability standards 
and regulatory requirements. The 
Team continuously strengthens 
LGVSD’s infrastructure to support 
long-term community needs 
and environmental stewardship, 
and thoughtfully incorporates 
sustainable design elements into 
every project. Careful planning and 
dedication make the Team a driving 
force in the District’s commitment to 
reliable, compliant, and sustainable 
wastewater management.

Mike 
Cortez, 
District 
Engineer

Irene 
Huang, 
Associate 
Engineer

Patty Quinn, 
Civil 
Engineering 
Technician

District’s Wastewater Treatment Plant — 
upgrade completed June 2023.

District’s Role in 
COVID-19 Detection
Wastewater-based 
epidemiology

When the COVID-19 pandemic 
began to spread, researchers drew 
on their existing knowledge of 
detecting viruses and pathogens 
in wastewater to start looking for 
and identifying the presence of the 
virus. That capability opened a new 
frontier in tracking the virus as it 
spread through human populations, 
by identifying its presence in the 
sewage systems. This wastewater-
based epidemiology allowed for 
early detection of the disease, 
giving health authorities vital 
information to identify “hot spots” 
and work to reduce localized 
outbreaks.

In early 2020, the District was 
approached by researchers from 
UC Berkeley, Stanford, and other 
institutions to support COVID-19 
detection efforts in wastewater. 
The District quickly joined the effort, 
providing samples and contributing 
to the nationwide push to curb the 
pandemic. This work, completed 
at no additional cost to ratepayers, 
underscored LGVSD’s commitment 
to leveraging wastewater science 
for the public good—from local 
residents to the wider population.

State Recognition of District’s Efforts 
In the fall of 2021, LGVSD’s 
contributions were formally 
recognized by the California 
State Water Resources Control 
Board in a resolution honoring 
wastewater treatment utilities 
for efforts in helping to better 
track the virus. This recognition 
highlighted the District and other 
agencies as early trendsetters in 

The Engineering Department Team

22



3

Be sure to call your preferred 
location first to confirm they 
continue to accept drug 
drop-off. 

Your local CVS or Rite Aid Store

San Rafael Police Department
1400 Fifth Ave.
San Rafael
(415) 485-3000

Kaiser San Rafael (Los Gamos) 
Pharmacy
1650 Los Gamos Drive, 
Floor 2, Room 2600
San Rafael
(415) 444-2000 

Marin County Sheriff’s Office
1600 Los Gamos Drive, 
Suite 205
San Rafael
(415) 473-6043

Kaiser San Rafael
99 Montecillo Road
San Rafael
(415) 444-2980

County of Marin Probation 
Department
3501 Civic Center Drive, 
Room 266
San Rafael
(415) 473-6310

Kaiser San Rafael Downtown 
1033 3rd Street, First Floor
San Rafael
(415) 482-6900

For the most updated list, visit 
med-project.org/locations/
marin-county.

*Location sources: 
•  County of Marin Department of 
    Health and Human Services
•  Marin County Environmental 
    Health Services
•  Med-Project, Medication Education 
    & Disposal

Pharmaceutical 
Drop-Off Locations* 

•  You can also pour cooled grease 
from pans into compostable 
containers, and place them in 
your green organics cart.

No Wipes in the Toilet
Please remember that disposable 
wipes of any kind, even those 
advertised as “flushable,” should 
never be flushed down the drain. 
These wipes, or anything other than 
toilet paper (including personal 
wipes, baby wipes, paper towels, 
feminine hygiene products, and 
other paper products — and, kitty 
litter!) can cause obstructions in 
the sewer collection system — and 
some of them must be physically 
removed at the wastewater 
treatment plant. Flushing wipes may 
also damage the plumbing system 
in your own home, potentially 
resulting in significant repairs and 
homeowner costs.  

When it comes to your toilets, just 
keep in mind that the only things to 
be flushed are the Three Ps — 
Pee, Poop, and (toilet) Paper!

Don’t Put Meds Down the Drain
Flushing your unused prescription 
pills down the toilet can cause 
water quality issues because 
wastewater treatment plants 
are typically not equipped to 
remove pharmaceuticals from the 
wastewater. Those medications 
could affect the environment 
and endanger public health. 
Instead, you can safely dispose of 
your unused pharmaceuticals by 
dropping them off at an authorized 
site (see list at right).

Check GetSmartAboutDrugs.gov for 
drop-off locations during each fall’s 
annual National Prescription Drug 
Take Back Day.

Everyone can help prevent FOG, 
wipes/paper products, and 
prescription drugs from entering 
our drains and sewers, by taking 
these easy steps. This helps to keep 
the system running smooth and 
prevent environmental impacts 
and overflows — at home, at 
the treatment plant, and in the 
collection system. Thank you for 
doing your part! 

“What Items Should Not Go Down Your Drain” continued from page 1

23



101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA 94903
Phone (415) 472-1734  •  Fax (415) 499-7715
www.lgvsd.org

Board of Directors	 Board Meetings are
Megan Clark
Nicholas Lavrov
Craig K. Murray 
Gary Robards 
Crystal J. Yezman

District Administration: Curtis Paxton, General Manager

Presorted
Standard

US Postage

PAID
San Rafael, CA
Permit No. 384

4

held at 4:00 PM on
the first and third 
Thursday of each month 
at the District offices.

The District received the following awards and certificates:
•	 Recycled Water Agency of the Year 2023 (Small Category) from the 

California WateReuse Association
•	 District Transparency Certificate of Excellence by the Special District 

Leadership Foundation for 2022-2025 in recognition of its outstanding 
efforts to promote transparency and good governance.

•	 Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 
2023 from Government Finance Officers Association.

Printed on recycled paper using soy-based inks.

implementing wastewater-based 
epidemiology well before formal 
State and Federal programs were 
developed. The Water Board 
expressed “profound appreciation” 
for LGVSD’s voluntary efforts 
and investments, underscoring 
the importance of wastewater 
monitoring for informing public 
health responses and safeguarding 
California’s communities.

Today, with the “new normal” of 
COVID and its variants, the District 
continues to work with its state and 
local partners to gather information 
about the virus’s presence in 
wastewater. Through this work we 
are making important contributions 
to the knowledge base toward a 
better understanding of COVID and 
its variants.

“Covid -19” continued from page 2

When done reading 
this newsletter, please 
put it in your blue 
recycling bin with other 
recyclable paper items.

Management in the Bay Area/
northern California. Currently, he 
serves as Environmental Protection 
Specialist at the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency in Oakland, 
helping the states of California, 
Nevada, Arizona, Hawaii, and 
territories located in the U.S. Pacific 
Islands to rebuild after disasters.

Mr. Lavrov holds a bachelor’s 
degree in economics from UC 
Berkeley, and is working on 
a master’s degree in Natural 
Resource Management from 
the University of Idaho. He is a 
State-certified Water Distribution 
Operator-Grade 2, and has been 
trained in several FEMA programs 
including the National Incident 
Management System, Emergency 
Preparedness, Incident Command, 
and Critical Infrastructure Security 
and Resilience.

Mr. Lavrov notes his long-time 
commitment to the community 
served by the District, saying, 
“I’m excited to join the LGVSD 
Board of Directors and bring my 
wide experience in water and 
wastewater, clean power, and 
protecting the environment to 

“Nicholas Lavrov” continued from page 1

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is 
excited to welcome Angela Beran 
as the new Grant Management 
and Procurement Specialist, a 
position added in 2024 to meet 
the growing needs of the District. 
We are also pleased to announce 
the hiring of Brendan Pankow 
as Electrical Instrumentation 
Technician, and Russell Gondoli 
as Skilled Maintenance Worker, 
filling existing positions that recently 
became vacant. Welcome to the 
team!

District Welcomes 
New Team Members 

the service of the District.” He 
looks forward to working with the 
other Board members and staff to 
address key initiatives including:

•  upgrading aging infrastructure

•  increasing use of recycled water

•  expanding the low-income 

program for the disadvantaged 
in the community

Please join us in welcoming 
Director Lavrov in his new role, 
helping guide our District toward a 
sustainable future.24



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\01162025\BankSigners\ASR 2024-2325 Bank of Marin signing authority.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report  

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
(415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org

Meeting Date: January 16, 2025 

Re: Resolution authorizing signing authority for the Bank of Marin bank accounts 

Item Type: Consent X  Action  Information Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes   No (See attached) Not Applicable    X  . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Resolution 2025-2345 to add new authorized member to the list of authorized 
signers for the Bank of Marin bank accounts and to update the signers list to show appointed 
President and Vice President positions on the Board. 

BACKGROUND 
The Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District operating bank accounts held at the Bank of Marin 
requires a formal resolution by the governing body to authorize representatives on the District’s 
behalf to establish new accounts, modify existing accounts, and to make deposits or withdrawals 
into the bank accounts. In addition, Board members are authorized to sign checks in place of the 
General Manager or the Administrative Services Manager as needed. Signature cards of 
authorized signers are required to be filed with the Bank of Marin.  

Board Member Nicholas Lavrov, elected to the Board in November and seated on December 19, 
2024, will be added to the authorized signers list. Concurrently, this resolution will notify Bank of 
Marin of newly appointed President Gary Robards and Vice President Cystal Yezman. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On April 4, 2024, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2024-2325 authorizing signers for Bank of 
Marin accounts.  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 
None.  

Item Number________3F______ 

GM Review   _________CP_____ 

25

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Resolution No. 2025-2345  Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-2345 
 

A RESOLUTION OF LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING SIGNING AUTHORITY FOR THE BANK OF MARIN OPERATING 
ACCOUNT #03323300 AND ASSOCIATED ACCOUNTS #03510138, #03509510, 

#03508959, #03319258, #03511060, #03513652, #03513983, #03716073, #03715679  
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300 

San Rafael, California 94903 
Tel: 415-472-1734 

 
WHEREAS, a general operating checking account was established with the Bank of Marin in 
2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional associated accounts were established to conduct District business; and 

WHEREAS, Board Financial Policy F-90-70 requires that signing authority is to be granted by 
resolution for checks drawn from the Operating bank account, and that checks will be signed by 
two authorized signatories, and 

WHEREAS, the General Manager and Administrative Services Manager, who serves as the 
District Treasurer, are authorized as the primary signers may occasionally be unavailable to sign, 
any available Board member may sign in place of the General Manager or the Administrative 
Services Manager, or two Board members may sign in place of the General Manager and the 
Administrative Services Manager, and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District does hereby find 
that the authorized signers have changed due to a new board member being elected, and new 
President and Vice President being appointed. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District authorize the following persons or combination of persons listed as signers on 
the signature card are authorized to endorse, on the behalf of the District, any checks or other 
items payable to the organization or its order, to deposit such checks and other items into the 
account(s), with or without such endorsement and to direct withdrawals from the account(s) by 
check drawing on the account(s) or otherwise, including withdrawals payable to anyone who is 
an authorized signer until they are removed from their elected or assigned position: 
 
 GARY E. ROBARDS    CRYSTAL J. YEZMAN  
 PRESIDENT, BOARD OF DIRECTORS  VICE PRESIDENT, BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
 

 ________________________________  _________________________________ 
 Signature     Signature  
 
 CRAIG. K. MURRAY    MEGAN CLARK  
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 

 ________________________________  _________________________________ 
 Signature     Signature  

26



Resolution No. 2025-2345  Page 2 of 2 

 

NICHOLAS LAVROV    CURTIS PAXTON   
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS   GENERAL MANAGER  
 
 ________________________________  ________________________________ 
 Signature     Signature 
 

 
DALE MCDONALD 

 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Signature  
        

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Administrative Services Manager shall file with the Bank 
of Marin any required signature cards, consumer information forms, and/or submittals along with 
a copy of this executed resolution; all of the authorized signatures appearing for authorized 
signers on the signature card referenced by this resolution are those of the persons authorized to 
withdraw funds in accordance with this resolutions until such authority is revoked by giving 
written notice to the Bank of Marin signed by authorized officers of this organization, and, these 
resolutions are still in force and are unmodified. 
 
 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, 
Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 16TH Day of January, 2025, that the 
following persons or combination of persons listed as signers are authorized to endorse, on the 
behalf of this of the district, any checks or other items payable to the organization or its order, to 
deposit such checks and other items into the account, with or without such endorsement and to 
direct withdrawals from the account by check drawing on the account or otherwise, including 
withdrawals payable to anyone who is an authorized signer, by the following vote of the 
members thereof: 
 
 

AYES, and in favor thereof Members:  

NOES, Members:   

ABSENT, Members:  

ABSTAIN, Members:   

      ____________________________________ 
       Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary 
                  Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
          (seal) 
 
APPROVED: 
           
__________________________ 
Crystal J. Yezman, Vice-President 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District          

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



 

 
 

 

1/16/2025 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4.1 

36



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\01162025\BudgetCalendar\ASR 2025-26 Budget Calendar and Strategy.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report  

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
(415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org

Meeting Date: January 16, 2025 

Re: Annual Budget Development Timeline for FY 2025-2026 

Item Type: Consent  Action  Information    X Other  . 

Standard Contract:    Yes   No (See attached) Not Applicable    X  . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to receive the annual budget development and adoption timeline. 

BACKGROUND: 
Attached is the tentative budget calendar for the 2025-2026 Fiscal Year (FY). This calendar 
indicates that the budget will be brought to the Board for approval no later than June 26, 2025. 

Board Policy F-40 provides guidance on the budget process. It is the responsibility of the General 
Manager and Administrative Services Manager to prepare the budget. 

The budget will factor in additional revenue from the Sewer Service Charge (SSC) rate increase 
that will be effective July 1, 2025. There is no need to send out Prop 218 Notices as the SSC rate 
increase is planned to remain at or below the 10% threshold established by Ordinance 192 
adopted on June 30, 2023 providing for SSC rate increases through June 30, 2027. 

The second regularly scheduled Board meeting in June lands on the Juneteenth National 
Independence Day holiday, June 19. Staff recommends to cancel that meeting and schedule a 
Special Board Meeting for the budget hearing and adoption on the following Thursday, June 26, 
2025. 

A Public Hearing on the budget is therefore recommended to be scheduled for June 26, 2025. 
Adoption of the budget will occur before the next fiscal year begins on July 1, 2025. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION: 
None 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 

Item Number____4.2__________ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

37

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Budget Calendar and Timeline
for the Adoption of the 

2025-2026 Budget

Date Task

January 23, 2025 Budget Kickoff Meeting / CIP Discussion with Managers

February 20, 2025 Mid Year Budget Review FY 2024-2025 and Forecast EOY w/ Board

February 27, 2025 Preliminary Budget developed with Managers (O&M and CIP)

March 5, 2025 Preliminary Budget for FY 2025-2026 Finalized by GM

March 20, 2025 Preliminary Budget Presented at Regular Board Meeting

Early April Prepare Preliminary Non-Residential Commercial Sewer Rate Calculations  (1)

May 1, 2025 Prepare Proposed Budget w/ Employee Costs CPI Data

May 15, 2025 Review Proposed Budget w/ Board, confirm Rate Increase for use in final budget

May 15, 2025 Board Meeting with Resolution Fixing Time and Place for Budget Hearing

May 22, 2025 Publication of Legal ad No. 1 for Budget Public Hearing

June 5, 2025 Publication of Legal ad No. 2 for Budget Public Hearing

June 26, 2025 Budget Hearing and Adoption along with SSC Resolutions at Special Board Meeting

   * Resolutions Certifying Legal Notice Has Been Given 

   * Public Hearing for the Budget

   * Resolution Confirming the Annual Sewer Service Charge and Supplemental Charges

   * Resolution Fixing and Approving the Budget

   * Resolution Providing for the Collection of Sewer Service Charges on the Tax Roll

   * Resolution Determining the Appropriation of Tax Proceeds

   * Adopt Pay Scale of Wages effective July 1, 2025

     (1) LGVSD to request water data from MMWD after April 1 to capture February-March MMWD billing period data.

Q:\ACCOUNTING\BUDGET\2025‐26 Budget\Budget Calendar and Timeline 2025‐2638



 

 
 

 

1/16/2025 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

 
LAVROV 

TBD 
 
 
MURRAY 

Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  
 
 

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA, 
Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  McInnis 
Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Development Ad Hoc 
Committee, FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

39



                                                                                  AGENDA: ITEM 6A 
                                                                                  DATE: January 16, 2025            

REVISED 09062023 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER CONFERENCE/ 

 MEETING/WEBINAR ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

 

Board Members to register for Webinars and Meetings   

                       YES  NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference only:         

 

Board Directors to make their own Hotel Reservations and book their own 

transportation including airfare, taxi and/or shuttles. 

   

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

40



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\01162025\6B Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

1/16/2025 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 

Agenda Item 6B

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting

 Verbal Report

□ Presentation

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78


	3E Final Winter Newsletter.pdf
	ASR Approve Winter 2025 Newsletter
	HeronNews_Winter25 v7B




